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Legend:  

CT= Contracting Team
TT= Technical Team
MT= Management Team

PRIC = Pricing Team        PM = Program Manager   PRAG = PRAG

Please note that these questions are not numbered in sequential order.  We have received over 250 questions.  The questions were numbered in a Master List, and have been, and will continue to be posted as answers are completed.  

10.  (TT) L-903/2.3

Recommend that this definition be changed to a Point Size and a specific font, as these are the definitions used in Microsoft Word, e.g. 12 point Times New Roman.

Answer:  Offerors should use 12 point-Times New Roman for text and 10 point-Arial for tables, charts, graphs and figures.

11.  (TT) L-903/4.2.5 

May the Offeror prepare answers to the pop quiz in PowerPoint 97 and present on the computer projection system and deliver the presentation on disk?

Answer: No.

12.  (TT) L-903/4.2.8 

Is the Offeror required to utilize the same seven representatives for the Oral Presentation, Pop Quiz, and the Question and Answer session?

Answer:  Yes.  The offeror is allowed to identify up to a total of seven representatives that will participate in the Oral Presentation, Pop Quiz, and Question and Answer session.  These representatives may participate in all sessions; no substitution is allowed.  During the Pop Quiz, a telephone and fax machine will be provided for outside contact.

13.  (TT) L-903/4.2.7.1 

May the Offeror provide their own computer for the oral presentation to avoid compatibility problems?

Answer: No

14.  (TT) L903/Table 4.4 

It appears that there may be a horizontal line missing between "Pneumatic" and "Software" which would separate the Hydraulic/Pneumatic and Software Areas.

Answer:  Concur.  There should be two separte categories:  "Hydraulic/Pneumatic" and "Software".

24.  (TT) Labor Categories 4 Level 3 

Engineering Technician Level 3 states "...of which three (5) years shall be ... " Please clarify whether the requirement is 3 or 5 years.

Answer:  The requirement is 5 years.  The “three” will changed to “five.”

26.  (TT) Labor Categories/Engineering Level 1, 2, 3 

Current Labor Category descriptions require an Engineer-in Training (EIT) certificate for all engineering categories. Normally an EIT is obtained in preparation for a Professional Engineering (PE) Certificate, which is required for many civil engineering functions, but not typically required for DoD engineering disciplines. EIT’s are also not applicable for non–engineering degrees such as Physics, Mathematics, Computer Science, or Business Science as specified in many of the Engineering Categories. Requirement of EIT’s will significantly increase the engineering costs in many of these labor categories without a benefit to the Government. Suggest removal of the EIT requirement.

Answer: EIT certificates are not required for engineering degreed personnel.  To be classified as an engineer, EIT certificates are required for personnel with a mathematics/physical science bachelor’s degree.

Labor categories will be revised.

27.  (TT) Labor Categories 53 

The Engineer, Mechanical, Ground Vehicle Labor Category contains an EMSEC and EMI/EMC evaluation criteria requirement in the last sentence. This requirement is typically applicable for an Electrical Engineer, not a Mechanical Engineer and significantly restricts this category. Suggest removal of the EMSEC and EMI/EMC evaluation criteria requirement

Answer:  No.  The labor category reflects a type of work to be accomplished under FAST.

31.  (TT)  Reference:  Section L, Table 4.4, Team Structure Matrix
Should the area “Hydraulic/Pneumatic Software” actually be two areas – “Hydraulic/Pneumatic” and “Software”?

Answer:  Concur.  There should be two separate categories: "Hydraulic/Pneumatic" and "Software".
NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

41.  (TT)  Ref: L-903, Para 2.3, Page Size and Format  

Type requirement is for “no less than 12 pitch” for text and no smaller than “10 pitch” for tables, charts, graphs, and figures. Pitch is number of characters per inch (a horizontal measurement) vice “points” which equate to vertical size. In addition, 10 pitch produces a larger type size than 12 pitch. Will the Government consider standards such as 12 point Time Roman for text and 10 point Arial for tables, charts, graphs, and figures with the exceptions being reproductions used for illustrative purposes and Volume II – Cost/Price spreadsheets?
Answer:  Offerors should use 12 point-Times New Roman for text and 10 point-Arial for tables, charts, graphs and figures.

NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

42.  (TT) Ref: L-903, Para 4.2 Oral Presentations

Can contractors request the opportunity to provide the Government with a management software demonstration encompassing our e-commerce and integrated collaboration concepts. We feel that submitting a CD ROM without such a demonstration would not allow the Government to experience the extent of our Internet and networking capabilities. If, however, the Government decides against such a demonstration, we would like permission to incorporate audiovisual information (AVI) files into the slideshow. These would only be visible by running the slideshow, not from looking at the paper copies only.

Answer:  No, the Government is looking for technical answers to sample tasks only.  The paper copies must match the PowerPoint presentation.

43.  (TT) Ref: L-903, Para 4.2 Oral Presentations

Will the Government allow the contractor to use its own equipment for the oral presentation? We have used Government-provided equipment in the past and have experienced formatting problems (font changes, bullet placement, etc.). Our equipment is high-end technology and our presenters become very comfortable using it. Further, we format our presentation to our equipment. We are concerned that the requirement to use Government equipment will degrade our performance. 


Answer: Government equipment will be used, and the room will be available one hour prior to the offeror presenting their responses to the sample tasks, on the day of their oral presentations.

If the decision remains to use Government equipment, can we access the equipment in advance of the presentation to test speed, fonts, brightness, and other criteria? If we cannot access the equipment early, can we get specifications on the computer and projector? Can we get a list of the fonts in the Windows directory or will we be able to download our own fonts into the computer?

Answer: Access to equipment will be provided one hour prior to commencement of the oral presentation.  The fonts specified in the RFP will be in the Windows directory.  Contractors SHALL NOT download any information/data onto the government computer.

45.  (TT)  Ref: L-903, Para 4.2.3 Oral Presentation Time Limits

Ref states that 2 hours total will be allocated to brief 4 sample tasks at 30 minutes each.  This appears to be very restricted and does not appropriately allot time to demonstrate effective management controls of a complex program such as FAST. It would appear the government would want to ensure that successful contractors had effective management controls in place by allowing additional time for overall a program management presentation in the oral presentation.

Answer: Two hours is sufficient time for the offeror to provide a response that demonstrates the offeror’s capabilities.

67.  (TT) SOW/DOT

It is interesting to note that there is no definition of programmed depot maintenance in the FAST SOW or in Tab A, Definition of Terms.  Spares and Repairs are both defined, and limited to Contingency, Limited, and Critical.  Please explain whether PDM is in fact included, and to what extent?  What portion of the total dollar value of FAST is anticipated for PDM?

Answer: PDM is not included in the DRFP FAST SOW, Revision 11.

77.  (TT) SOW

Paragraph 3.1.8 of the Statement of Work states the contractor shall apply certified quality management processes/practices (industry-specific ISO 9000 or equivalent) to meet the individual D/TO requirements, as required. Does this imply that all contractor functions/organizations performing D/TO efforts must be ISO 9000 or equivalent certified in all aspects of the D/TO?

Answer: Yes.  It is intended that the contractor shall apply independently certified quality management processes/practices (industry-specific ISO 9000 or equivalent) to meet the individual D/TO requirements, as required.  The SOW will be revised.

79.  (TT)  

The intended scope of the acquisition seems to need more precise definition.  As drafted, there seems to be virtually no limit to the scope of activities that could be procured; we understood that the scope should primarily focus around the Product Support Business Area and related sustainment process functions.  The draft seems to place emphasis on engineering activities already covered by other omnibus vehicles or the supply and repair processes that are more incidental than core to the stated intent of FAST. 

Answer:  The FAST scope of work is described in the FAST SOW.  The types of task performance are described without an emphasis.  Some complex activities are fully described for clarity.

88.  (TT)  Reference:  Section L, Subfactor 3, Team Structure, Table 4.4

Comment:  The column 1 (Area), row 3 entry refers to “Hydraulic/Pneumatic Software.”  Is it the Air Forces intent to acquire and support software that operates hydraulic and pneumatic systems or is it intended that “Software” be in a separate row?

Answer: There should be two separate categories: "Hydraulic/Pneumatic" and "Software".
NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

90.  (TT)  Reference: Contract Section L, Subfactor 1, Warfighter Support.  Para 4.3.1 b)

Comment:  This paragraph relates to software support, but the statement of work does not contain an applicable reference to the type of work described in this paragraph. 

Answer:  This is referenced in SOW paragraph 3.3.2.1.

91.  (TT)  Reference: Contract Section L, Subfactor 1, Warfighter Support.  Paragraph 4.3.1 f)

Comment:  We have been unable to locate a specific and clearly defined reference to spares production, modification and repair in the statement of work.

Answer:  This is referenced in SOW paragraph 3.3.3.

93.  (TT) General Comment: 

This acquisition appears to combine several support and product development, test and evaluation, and support requirements including engineering support, on-site technical support, deployment support, spares production and delivery, and modifications development and implementation.  Neither the Statement of Work nor introduction provides a summary discussion of the anticipated support.  The matrix in Section L, Table 4.4 provides the best indication of the acquisition requirements.  Please consider providing such a summary in the introductory materials or in the scope (Paragraph 1.1) of the statement of work.

Answer:  The FAST acquisition does combine several support requirements as identified within the FAST SOW.  The purpose of the SOW is not to provide an exhaustive summary of the anticipated support and the resulting acquisition requirements, but to provide the task descriptions and definitions.  Resulting acquisition requirements will be driven by individual Delivery/Task Order requirements. 

98.  (TT)  Reference: Solicitation Section L-903, Sample Tasks, Paragraph 4.3. 

It would be beneficial if in the final RFP, each of the 4 sample tasks were identified by subject matter, i.e., the top-level SOW paragraph. This has been done on past proposal efforts such as Rapid Response and it was extremely helpful to the bidders as well as to the Government. It allowed the contractors to better focus on developing a higher quality and more detailed solution thus facilitating the Government evaluation process.

Answer:  The nature of the sample tasks will not be disclosed in advance.  The purpose of the timing of sample task release  is to evaluate an offeror’s capability to respond to multiple RFOPs in a timely manner.

99.  (TT)  Reference: Solicitation Section L-903, Paragraph 2.3 and Paragraph 4.2.7.1

Section L-903 at Paragraph 2.3 requires that text size be no less than 12 pitch and at Paragraph 4.2.7.1 requires that text be compatible with Microsoft Word 97. Word 97 produces proportional pitch (or spacing) text. In fixed pitch systems, 12 pitch normally equates to 10-point type. Ten-pitch normally equates to 12-point type. Should offerors use 10 or 12 point-type and is proportional pitch text acceptable?

Answer:  Offerors should use 12 point-Times New Roman for text and 10 point-Arial for tables, charts, graphs and figures.

NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

101.  (TT)  Reference: Solicitation Section L-903, Paragraph 4.6 and Section M-901, Paragraph 2.2

Please confirm that “Proposal Risk” as used in Section L at Paragraph 4.6 equates to Factor 2 – Proposal Risk as defined in Section M at Paragraph 2.2. Where should offerors include their discussion of Proposal Risk in Volume I?(TT)  Reference: Solicitation Section H-906.e, Attachments 1, Page 7, Paragraph 3.1.5.a and 3.1.5.i and Attachment 2, Blocks 1.a and 1.b,.

Answer:  Proposal Risk as used in Section L at Paragraph 4.6 equates to Factor 2 – Proposal Risk as defined in Section M at Paragraph 2.2.  Proposal Risk for Subfactor 1 and Subfactor 2 should be addressed relative to each individual sample task.  Proposal risk for subfactors 3 and 4 should be addressed for each individual subfactor.  Proposal risk for all subfactors will be included within the given page limitation.

118.  (TT)  L-903, Table 4.4: 

It appears that the area “Hydraulic/Pneumatic Software” should actually be two areas, “Hydraulic/Pneumatic” and “Software”.  Please confirm. 

Answer: There should be two separate categories: "Hydraulic/Pneumatic" and "Software".
NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

122.  (TT)  Clause L-903 Paragraph 5.2.5

Will all offerors be required to respond to the same sample tasks or will there be more than 4 from which offerors may select 4?

Answer: The offerors will respond to the same four sample tasks. The pop quiz will also be the same for everyone.

158.  (TT) SOW

Can references in the Statement of Work to "shall" be changed to "will?"

Answer:  No

160.  (TT)  Ref. SOW Para. 3.3.2.3, Testing
Maintaining qualified flight crews for all AF aircraft would be cost prohibitive.  Recommend deletion of the next to last bullet, “Flight-testing”

Answer: SOW will be revised to delete the requirement for qualified flight crew.  The “Flight-testing” bullet will not be deleted as the contractor may be required to provide personnel to support flight test activities.

163.  (TT)  Sample Task

Will the Government provide, in the final RFP, a sample of what their “sample tasks” might look like? 

Answer:  No, The nature of the sample tasks will not be disclosed in advance.  The purpose of the timing of sample task release is to evaluate an offeror’s capability to respond to multiple RFOPs in a timely manner.

166.  (TT) L-903, Para 4.2

Will the contractors be allowed to view the presentation room prior to the beginning of their set up time?

Answer:  No, the offeror will be allowed access to the room one hour prior to the offeror’s oral presentation.

167.  (TT) L-903, Para 4.2.5
Will all contractors be given the “same” pop quiz question?  It is not clear from the draft if that is the intention.

Answer:  Yes.

203.  (TT)  Reference Section L, Paragraph 4.4 (Subfactor 3: Team Structure)
Offerors are explicitly asked to address three elements under this Subfactor (team composition, rationale for team members, and process for internal team communication). Given the apparent strong concern placed on organizational conflict of interest (OCI) at the FAST Risk Assessment Workshop, would it be advantageous to the Government to include an element such as “plan/approach for mitigating OCI concerns?”

Answer:  It would not be advantageous to the government to include an evaluation criterion for mitigating OCI concerns.  The range of OCI is vast; consequently, addressing this in a meaningful way at the basic contract level is impractical.

204.  (TT)  Reference Statement of Work para 3.3.2.3 page 12 

Will flight crews be required for all types of aircraft at all ALC’s and site support areas ?
Answer: The contractors shall be capable of furnishing technical personnel on board aircraft to perform functions such as testing. These contractor personnel shall provide to the PCO documentation of a current FAA flight physical and aircrew physiological training.  SOW will be revised

205.  (TT)  Reference Section L, Paragraph 2.3(a) and (b) 

Paragraph 2.3(a) instructs “text size shall be no less that 12 pitch.” Section (b) instructs “tables, charts, graphs, and figures, the text shall be no smaller than 10 pitch.”

Quote from the “MS Word User’s Guide” – “In Word [and Powerpoint], font sizes are measured in points. ... Don't confuse point size with character pitch. Character pitch is used to measure the size of type in which all characters are the same width, such as the fixed-width characters on a “daisy wheel” printer or other impact printer. Pitch determines how many characters will fit side-by-side in 1 inch of space, or characters per inch (cpi). The larger the cpi number, the smaller the corresponding point size; the smaller the cpi, the larger the point size. To convert pitch to point, divide 120 by the pitch. To convert a point size to a pitch, divide 120 by the number of points.”

Using this formula and the way the DRFP is written, text should be set in 10 point, and graphics should be set in 12 point. Please clarify the font size to use for text and graphics (to include tables, charts, diagrams, etc.).

Answer:  Offerors should use 12 point-Times New Roman for text and 10 point-Arial for tables, charts, graphs and figures.

NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

228.  (TT)  Part 1 Schedule Section B, Page 67, L-903, 4.2 

Will the contractors be allowed to view the presentation room prior to the beginning of their set up time?

Answer:  No, the room will be available one hour prior to the offeror’s presentation.

236.  (TT)  Section L, clause L-903, para 4.4 , Table 4.4 

I believe there is typo in that the area Hydraulic/ Pneumatic is grouped with Software . I think you probably intended these areas to be separate.

Answer: There should be two separate categories: "Hydraulic/Pneumatic" and "Software".
NOTE:  This is a duplicate question.

